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1

2 I coon the record

3 Allright. This is resumed deposition of Mr. Ken Kukowski, conducted by the

4 House Select Committee to Investigate the January 6th Attack on the U.S. Capitol

5 pursuant to House Resolution 503.

s At thi time, Mr. Klukowski, could you please reintroduce yourself?

7 The Witness. My name is Kenneth Allen Klukowski.

8 I +d, Counsel, first in the room, why don't you introduce yourself
° Mr. Brothers. Yeah. Paul Brotherswith Graves Garrett.

10 [I ce'ent. And we do have counsel joining on the Webex platform

11 aswell Ifyou could please introduce yourself.

2 Mr. Greim. ~ EddieGreim from Graves Garrett, dialing in from Kansas City,

13 Missouri.

1 I Great "ketojust thankyoualfor being hereinperson and
15 virtually,

16 So we have met before, and the same rules are going to govern, but | do want to

17 go over some of them again just to remind you.

18 This is going to be a staff-led interview like before. Members do have the

19 opportunity to join, andifthey do, we'll ry to announce their presence so you know that

2 they're there.

2 my name[I 1m a senior investigative counsel for the select

22 committee. And with me in the room today isINN» professional staff
23 member forthe committee.

x Under the House deposition ules, neither committee members nor staff can

25 discuss the substance of the testimony you provide today unless the committee approves
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1 itsrelease. And you andyour attorney will have an opportunity to review the transcript

2 afterwards.

3 1 understand that you have reviewed the existing transcript from last time. So

a we'll make that opportunity available for the future transcript from today.

5 There is an official reporter transcribing the record of the deposition. Please

6 wait until each question is completed before you begin your response, and we'll try to

7 wait until your response is complete before we ask our next question. And, of course,

8 the stenographer can't record nonverbal responses, such as shaking your head, so please

9 do answer with an audible, verbal response.

10 Like before, we ask that you provide complete answers based on your best

11 recollection. And if the question is not clear, please ask for clarification. If you don't

12 know the answer, please simply say so, but you may only refuse to answera question to

13 preserve a privilege recognized by the select committee.

14 And if you do refuse to answera question based on a privilege, then staff can

15 either proceed with the deposition or seek a ruling from the chairman on the objection.

16 And if the chairman overrules such an objection, you would be required to answer the

17 question.

18 I do want to remind you that it's unlawful to deliberately provide false information

19 to Congress. And since this deposition is under oath, providing false information could

20 resultin criminal penalties for perjury or providing false statements.

2 Do you understand all of that that we went over?

2 The Witness. Yes, si.

23 I~icht. Verygood. Thankyou

2 At this time, Id ask that you stand and raise your right hand to be resworn.

25 The Reporter. Mr. Klukowski, do you swear or affirm under the penalty of
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1 perjury that the testimony you're about to give in this deposition shall be the truth, the

2 whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

3 The Witness. |do.

a The Reporter. Thankyou.

5 Ivou. si. And then, if at anytime you need any breaks or
6 would ike to consult with your counsel, please just let us know, we're happy to do so.

7 And just as a reminder, this is being recorded through the Webex platform and

8 also this camera. Sof you do need to consult, we'll figure out a way to do that, because

9 this doesn't stop recording.

10 Allright. At this point, | understand that either you, Mr. Greim, or you,
11 Mr. Brothers, would like to make preliminary remarks.

2 Mr. Brothers. Yes. We'd just like to note for the record before we begin the

13 resumed deposition, at the beginning of this deposition some months ago, Mr. Klukowski

14 raised numerous objections. | will not recite them for the record again, but the

15 objectionsinclude, but aren't limited to, mattersdealing with the composition of the

16 committee, the authorization of the committee to issue a subpoena for Mr. Klukowski's

17 deposition testimony based on the composition issues,whether the subpoena is

18 supported bya legislative purpose and a pertinent committee function.

19 There were also numerous objections raised in Mr. Kiukowski's document

20 production. And we preserve all of those objections and are notwaiving any of them by

21 appearing to resume the deposition today. ~ And we also continue to preserve all

22 constitutional and common law privileges.

23 I "rk vou for that. Your objections are noted. And Il just, for

24 the record, and simplicity, hopefully, also incorporate, in addition to what you said, the

25 objections that are reflected in the transcript from December 15th, which is the first time
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2 Mr. Brothers. That would be great.

3 EE

7 There's a few issues we wanted to bring you back to discuss.

8 The first I'l start with is going back to Mr. Jeffrey Bossert Clark. And we

9 understand that you began working for him on December 15th at the Department of

12 Q Okay. Do you know whether Mr. Clark ever communicated with Rudy

15 recollection of anything responsive to that.

16 Q Did he ever tell you anything that suggested he was in touch with

18 A Not that | recall.

23 with Jenna Ellis?
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1 Kerik, Katherine Friess, or Cleta Mitchell any of those?

2 A What were those names again?

3 Q Yeah, sure. Bernie Kerik?

4 A Not that recall

5 Q Katherine Friess or Friess?

6 A Notthat recall

7 Q Clea Mitchell?

8 A Not that recall

9 Q Okay. Did Mr. Clark ever tell you he had meetings or communications with

10 anybody associated with the President's campaign? Or what was left over from the

11 campaign at that December through January period?

2 A Could you clarify? It's that's - that's — you say anyone affiliated with the

13 campaign?

1 Q That's correct. Who was representing the President in his personal

15 capacity or on behalfof the campaign in the period from December 15th up and through

16 January the 20th. Do you remember Mr. Clark saying that he had been in touch with

17 anybody like that?

18 A 1donot recall any conversation in which he mentioned a name that either

19 knew or that he represented to me was someone representing the campaign.

20 Q Did he say -- did Mr. Clark say to you that he had been in touch with

21 representatives from the President's campaign or his individual counsel -- the President's

22 individual counsel?

23 A I donot recall any conversation that was characterized in words similar to

24 whatyoujust said.

2 Q Okay. Other than the PresidentorWhite House staff, do you remember
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1 Mr. Clark saying anything to you indicating that he had been in touch with well, Ill

2 rephrase that later as we go through some of this.

3 Did Mr. Clark ever tell you about communications or meetings he had with Mark

4 Meadows?

5 A Not that recall

6 Q Okay. And when we last met, weaskedyou about communicationsor

7 meetings that you had with those people, but it was limited to January. Did you have

8 any meetings or communications with Rudy Giuliani between the election, November

9 3rd,and January 20th?

10 A Not that recall

u Q How about Sidney Powell?

2 A Not that recall

13 Q  Jennakllis? Same period.

1a A Not that recall

5 Q  Cleta Mitchell? That same period.

16 A And, again, we're asking conversations,or can you repeat the question in

7 ful

18 Q Yeah, sure. And I'm looking for communications.

19 A Right

20 Q So whetherin person, over the phone,over email, text message, any.

21 communications with those people I've listed. And I'm happy to do so again.

2 A Not that recall

23 Q Okay. Did you ever have any conversations, communications, meetings

24 with Jeff Clark about John Eastman?

2 A Not that recall
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1 Q You're pausing there. Is there

2 A No. I'mjust—I'mtryingtothink through carefully each -you know, each

3 aspect of what you're saying.

4 a okay.

5 A I'm being deliberative and careful to try and be precise in my answers.

6 Q  Verygood. Iappreciate that.

7 A Andthisisal- this is all in the distant past, and I'mtrying 0 there are:

8 names| have not thought about in a longtime, and | want to take a moment to thinkif

9 could recall anything.

10 Q Okay. Understood. And take all the time you need, and we appreciate

11 your beingdeliberateand careful.

2 Did Mr. Clark ever tell you that he spoke with John Eastman at any point during

13 the post-election period, so between November 3rd and January 20th?

1a A It's — before we go that to my previous answers regarding those individuals,

15 iflwasin like a large group setting, it might've have been in the same room with

16 someone and might have said hi to them. | might not recall that exchange, but it's ~ so

17 wanted to make clear, I'm not saying that | can't say | was never in the same place as

18 anyofthem. Ijust--1don'trecall any conversationswiththose individuals.

19 a Okay.

20 A With each with each of those individuals.

2 Q That we just listed?

2 A That'sright. | mean, there were large campaign-related events and

23 whatnot, and | don't know necessarily who was in the room each time or whether |

24 might've said hello to someone as | passed by them. | do not recall any conversations.

2 Q Understood. Soto
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1 A 0 can you repeat the question we're on now?
2 Q Yes,ofcourse. So my question nowis, did Mr. Clark ever tel you that he
3 spokewith John Eastman in the post-election periods? And when | say spoke,
4 electronically, in person, over the phone, or otherwise.
s A Notthat recall
5 Q When we last met, we did discuss with you your interactions with John
7 Eastman. Iwill say that you withheld, as your counsel has represented last time, and
8 thistime again, and throughout the period, that you withheld a number of documents on
9 attomey-client, First Amendment privilege claims
0 Did you, Mr. iukowski review those claims before asserting them to the
1 committee?
2 Mir. Greim, I'm going to Im going to object here. | mean, | think t's
13 inappropriate to ask a witness about, you know, his interaction with counsel and the
14 preparation that went into positions that we take.
15 I oi). And tobe clear, I'm not going to ask about any.

16 communicationswith counsel that he had.
7 just want to make sure, Mr. Klukowski, did you review your documents and
18 ultimately decide and agree with the decisions to produce or withhold certain documents
19 on objection grounds?
2 Mr. Greim. You know, I think | | understand the - | understand the question,
21 but] don't thik it's appropriate to try o tease out I mean, | thnk the relevance would
22 be to show that there was a difference between the witness and counsel, and | just don't
23 thinkthat's an appropriate question here.
2 mean, | think we will just stipulate that thepositions that we took are the
25 positions we took.
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1 JI Ucerstood. And tothe extent they're any different, that's what |
2 wanttounderstand. Some of these objections, | just want to make sure that

3 Mr. Kiukowski ultimately, his production to the committee is his, and so | want to make

4 sure that he looked at what was provided and understands the nature of what was in his

5 possession,

6 And ultimately, again, the First Amendment objection, in particular, is something

7 thatis uniquely situated to Mr. Klukowski

5 Mr. Greim. Okay. I'm just I'mnot sure that answers - I'm not sure that

9 answers our concern, though. | mean, you know, it's one thing at a deposition when

10 counsel, you know, instructs someone not to answer as privileged, and then you turn to

11 the witness and say, you know, do you agree with that, that it's privileged.

12 But | just don't --|mean,[lllmaybe there'sa different way, you know, to say,

13 youknow, did he review the entire set of materials that were given to counsel. I'm just

14 trying to think I'm just trying to think how to get to the I'l step back. Maybe

15 ll maybe just ask the questionagain. I'm sorry.

1 J vecure. And 1 askit again, and we can work through this as
17 we move along.

1 But we received privilege logs based on First Amendment objections as well as

19 attomey-client objections, and so | just want to know, Mr. Klukowski, did you review

20 those objections before the documents were provided to the select committee?

2 Mr. Greim. Yeah. And Ithink, guys [lll think I will object, because this is

22 going to the means by which we - | mean, you know, whether he reviewed it or not is.

23 going to reveal the way that we communicate with our client and sort of the process we

24 go through inmaking the production.

FS EE ov
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1 Mr. Greim. 1think you could ask him whether he stands by those, but | think to

2 then probe where he reviewed them himself or not is going too far.

3 EE Oty. I'm finewith tht.

a Do you stand by the objections that you have submitted to the select committee

5 inthe First Amendment privilege logs and attorney-client privilege logs?

6 The Witness. Yes, | do.

7 I oy. And we're going to go through some of those. The logs,

8 foryour benefit, are included in the binder as exhibit No. 22 and 23.

9 And, Eddie Mr. Greim, for your purposes, exhibit No. 22 is the attorney-client

10 privilegelog. Exhibit No. 231s the First Amendment privilege log that you provided to

nous

2 Mr. Greim. Okay. didn't see those in either of the boxes. | mean, I'm sure |

13 canpull themupin my system, but -

1 IE Yeh, these are documents that you provided

15 Mr. Greim. ~~ this is not a matter we talked aboutorthat we [inaudible], so

16 I hese ore the documents you produced to us, so we did not

17 re-produce them to you today.

1 Mr. Greim. ~ Yeah, | understand that, but it's going to take some time. | mean,

19 don't have all this stuff, you know, quickly at hand. Im going to go into an online fle

20 that! can access from where | am now.

2 I rts fine. We're not going to go through this line by line.

2 oI
23 Q Just for purposes, we are going to recall back to t, so your knowledge of

24 what these exhibits are hopefullywill help.

2s But if we do go to exhibit No. 24, this is an email that was produced to us, I
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1 represent toyou, as part of ongoing litigation, and it was produced over certain

2 attorney-client work product and other objections.

3 The first thing I'l ask you is - one person on this is Chuck DeVore. Do you know

4 who Chuck DeVore is?

5 A Not tomy recollection.

6 Q So the day after the election, on November 4th -it's at the bottom of this

7 email - John Eastman wrote to Chuck DeVore, saying, I'm on a plane to Philly, can't call,

8 butcando email.

9 And then Chuck DeVore responds, November 4th at 7:25 p.m., says, If Biden ends

10 up27010 268,consider this. Of the 270 electors, 171 are in States that allow faithless

11 electors. | believe that's 55 in California where there is a penalty, but you can doit

12 anyway. Decent odds he loses one, especially if he starts deteriorating in the coming

13 weeks under the stress.

14 Mr. Eastman then responds one email further up the chain onNovember th, at

15 7:12 pm, saying, So throws t to the House. How likely one of our Rep delegations goes

16 southonus. Lots of never Trumpers there.

7 Mr. DeVore then, moving up one, responds November4th at 6:13 p.m, saying,

18 Wemaybeupto27. lowawent from 3 to Dem and might go3 to 1 Rep.

19 Republican, I'm assuming.

0 And then Mr. Eastman, at the very top of this email chain, on Friday, November

21 6th, says to Mr. DeVore, I'm in a conference but can do email. Already been in touch

22 with Ken Klukowski on the legislative override for violations of existing State law option.

23 John.

2 Do you recall Mr. Eastman reaching out to you in this period, so before November

25 6thandafter the election, about what he calls the State legislature override?
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1 A recall communicatingwith Dr. Eastman in the days following the election.

2 I'm not sure exactly what dates.

3 Q Okay. And tellus about the communications you had with this, that's

4 reflected in this email, the legislature override.

5 Mr. Greim. Okay. Now, at this point, we're going to jumpin. And |

6 understand you're probably asking about a period of which we've been very clear that

7 Mi. Klukowski was counsel on the campaign. You may be trying to argue for some sort

8 of subject matter waiver.

9 And what we cando,JJJfllis we can you know, Mr. Kiukowski can testify as to

10 whether, you know, he was, in fact in touch with Eastman about the subject in this email.

11 But we are not going to use this, the fact that this email was pried loose in this other

12 litigation, to have Mr. KiukowsKi testify now to everything he spoke with Mr. Eastman

13 about, you know, while he was in the midst of working on the campaign. ~ We just - we

14 cantdothat

15 I~c hot's — if youcould just, please, clearly put the basis of the

16 objection on the record.

FY Mr. Greim.~ Attorney.-client privilege.

19 Q Andis it your understanding that Mr. Eastman was working for the campaign

20 between November 4th and November 6th, Mr. Klukowski?

2 A My understanding was, when | was working as a volunteer attorney on the

22 campaign, that my communications with Dr. Eastman during that window were when he

23 would also have been providing legal advice to. client or prospective client, in evaluating

24 potential legal issues and whether he would engage on the matter.

2 Q And his client being the campaign or Mr. Trump individually a a candidate
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1 forPresident?

2 A Iwas can't speak to Dr. Eastman’ state of mind. For my part, | was

3 representing the President's campaign

a Q But you're suggesting here that you're on the same legal team, is that right,

swith Dr. Eastman at this period between November4th and November 6th?

s A What I'm saying is that any communications | would've had on that subject

7 matter during that window would have been ofa nature that, as a practicing attorney,

8 have with other attorneys numerous times in terms of I'm working on a matter and want

9 to consult with another attorney who may or may not formally join the campaign, but itis

10 a consultation in contemplation of potential representation of anticipated litigation.

n Q Okay. Soyourobjections noted. | will go back to one thing that

12 Mr. Greim raised, which was, do you remember talking to Mr. Eastman about this

13 legislative override that's referenced in the email that I'm showing you as exhibit No. 24,

14 between November 4th and November 6th?

15 A 1 do recall conversations about identifying potential legal issues that could be

16 raised in ligation as part of a post-election challenge.

7 Q Okay. And that's somewhat different than this legislative override which

18 would be about electors and the legislative - based on the context of this email - a State

19 legislature's authority to choose electors. So do you remember discussing that, the

20 legislative override that involves a legislature, a State legislature choosing its own

21 electors, with Dr. Eastman in ths period between November ath and November 6th?

2 A In some of ~ | was working on the campaign in Pennsylvania. To the best

23 of my recollection, in the public filings that were made in that Pennsylvania tigation, it

24 included a discussion of the Electors Clause.

2 Q  Doyoudispute
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1 A Inthe litigation.

2 a rmsory.

3 Do you dispute that you had this conversation that Dr. Eastman references in his

4 email of November6th?

s A The way he characterizes it are his words, not mine. In the litigation that

6 wasfiled, I believe it was in the middle district of Pennsylvania, in the days following this

7 timestamp, it did include, to the best of my recollection, included substantive material

8 regarding the meaning of the Article Il Electors Clause and the role of State legislatures.

9 Q Outside of litigation, this email at exhibit 24 doesn't reference litigation.

10 Did this come up outside oflitigation? | don't want to get into your discussions about

1 litigation.

2 A 1donot recall having ~ 1 do not recall having conversations with Dr. Eastman

13 during this window where what | was talking about was not itgation or potential

14 tigation.

15 Q  Sothen, there wouldn't be conversations about going directly to State:

16 legislatures and asking them to choose their own electors is what you're saying. Is that

17 comect?

18 Mr. Greim, Well, and here's where I'm goingto jump in, okay, because, you

19 know, he can answer whether he had this discussion. 1 guess the problem, though, [lll
20 that's coming out here is we don't know what John Eastman means here.

2 And so I'm afraid that by continuing to probe, did he mean this, did he mean that,

22 did you have a conversation about this or that, it's becoming a wedge to ask about other,

23 you know, discussions other than what he's referencing.

2 I ocv The way just understood Mr. Klukowski's answer was that

25 he did not have conversations in this period, November 4th through November 6th, or
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2 option, outside of the litigation context, in which case there would be no privileged

$ unconnected to existing or anticipated litigation.

7 The Witness. | do not recall them.

8 oI
9 Q Okay. Allright. If we go to exhibit No. 25, this is an email that you are

10 copied on, from a person named Coleman Hopkins, to John Eastman on November 10th,

12 Who's Coleman Hopkins?

13 A Coleman Hopkins is a gentleman who, | believe, served in the White House

15 the campaign.

16 Q You say that you believe and to the best of your understanding. He says

18 relationship, was a friendship with Mr. Hopkins?

2a Q And he said that you introduced Mr. Eastman -- excuse me -- Dr. Eastman to

23 Mr. Brothers. Objection. Misstates the evidence.

25 Q Allright. So what it says, Our mutual friend, Ken Klukowski, | added him to
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1 to mat hav youlithe ae suggest yo 6.8 pal esau.
2 Did you share your email with Mr. -- or excuse me -- Dr. Eastman's email address

3 with Mr. Hopkins and suggest Dr Eastman ta Mr, Hopkin 53 potential resource, at
«aw
$ A | believe | shared Dr. Eastman's email with Mr. Hopkins.

. a ww
7 A I do not recall the -- the conversations | was having with Mr. Hopkins at the

© time. 1 how this ell sec how this mal deseries describes. Dr. Estan
9 is both a Ph.D. and a lawyer. He has expertise in statistical analysis,orat least that is my

10 understanding.

u VoaHBHRHTSWOHBoA SER
12 which his name would've come up.

13 Q Did Or. Eastman ask you to introduce him to somebody in the White House?

» J
15 Q Do you remember any reason that you would've had this thought to

16 introduce Dr. Eastman to Mr. Hopkins?

u A
18 did introduce him to Mr. Hopkins.

w [I ————————
20 The Witness. Could you repeat the question?

2a Mr. George. I'd be happy to.

2 oI
23 Q Do you have any recollection of why you chose to connect Dr. Eastman with

24 Mr. Hopkins around November 10th?

2 J



19

1 Q Is Mr. Hopkins an attorney?

2 A 1donotknow.

3 Q So you withheld this document,| understand, as an attorney-client privilege

4 document. | believe it's on your attorney-client privilege log in an entry on page 4,

5 dated November 10th at 437 p.m.

s It says the sender is another attorney, slash, professional, to another attorney,

7 copyingyou. And the reason for the - | think the time difference is 1 hour, based on

8 time zones.

9 wr. Brothers. One moment,[EMM You're getting - again, if we

10 would've had this in advance, we would've been more prepared for these questions, but

11 because you elected not to do that, we're going to need some time for you to point us to

12 theexactline. Soifyou couldhelpwith that, Id appreciate it

13 I Ofcourse. And we did provide, obviously, the documents in

14 advance, understanding you had the documents that you withheld, as well as the

15 privilege logs, for some time since our original engagement. But this is on page4 of the

16 attomey-client privilege log.

7 The Witness. Page 4.

18 I hich is exhibit No. 22.

19 The Witness. ~ Page 4, line what?

20 I~it's an entry dated November 10th at 4:37 p.m.

2 The Witness. 4:37 p.m. That wouldve been sender. So the sender would've

22 been Mr. Hopkins and the recipient would've been Dr. Eastman.

23 I i! cive vou an opportunity, after this deposition as well, to go

24 back through and confirm. It sounds lke,to the best of my understanding, Mr. Hopkins

25 isnotanattomey. And thisis helpfulif there are other documents as well that are
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1 relevant andthatarebeing withheld.

2 Mr. Greim. You know, I'm going to I'm going to jump in here. I've been trying.

3 topull up my own electronic version of this, and I'l this is my own fault because I'm not

4 used to the complexityofour fileson the system.

5 1 can see our transmittal emails and | can see a draft, but | cannot see the final log,

6 Sol'm going to go mute and call my paralegal to try to help me find this on our own

7 system. Because right now, I'm not able to follow along with the questions. ~Sojust 1

5 second.

5 I cvputt up on the screenfor you as well, Mr. Greim.

10 So this is page 4 of exhibit No. 22, and we'd be looking at theentryfor November

1 the 10that4:37 pum.

2 1 think you're on mute, Mr. Greim, if you're speaking.

3 Mr. Greim. Sorry. | was, yeah.

14 Okay. So 4:37, the very, very middle column, can we just scroll so | can see what

15 thatsays?

16 TE of course.

7 The justification column?

1s Mr. Greim. No. Its the two n front — actually, I'm going to pull up my draft

19 log. Ibetthe categories are the same.

20 That's adifferent witness.

2 Jhie you'repullin that up, Mr. Grim, what Il ask i for
22 Mr. Kiukowski tojust tell us about your conversations with Mr. Coleman, the White

23 House employee of Presidential Personnel, in the lead-up to the introduction —or excuse

24 me connectionwith Dr. Eastman

2s Mr. Greim, And I'm just going to caution the witness here that, you know,
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1 discussions with a nonlawyer can be privileged. And so if they're logistical, that's fine.

2 If they're about what some other lawyer has tasked Mr. Coleman to do, then, you

3 know and conveying legal issues, then those are privileged. And so that's the best

4 and

5 Go ahead, Mr. Klukowski.

6 The Witness. | regarded Mr. Hopkins as an agent of the campaign.

7 ovI

8 Q  Whyis that?

9 A He was actively working with the litigation.

10 Q Did you know him to be a volunteer for the campaign?

n A Itwasmyimpression that he wasvolunteeringtimewiththe campaign.

12 Q Based on what?

13 A Based onthere were campaignactivities that hewas involved within a way

14 indistinguishable fromother volunteers.

15 Q  Andasavolunteer, you perceived him as an agent such that the

16 attorney-client privilege could apply based on your discussions?

w A Forthe-

18 Mr. Brothers. I'm going to object to asking the witness about his opinion as to

15 the application of the attorney-client privilege. Once again,JV
20 wanderinginto the area that could implicate discussions between Mr. Greim and | and

2 MrKiukowski
2 1 think if you want to discuss the basis for privilege objections, that's something

23 that's appropriate for counsel to engage in, not something that's appropriate to put this

24 witness on the spot about.

2s I '. Klukowski's understandingof Mr. Hopkinsandhisroe, | think,
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1 goesdirectlytoaclaim. I'm not asking for any privileged communications between

2 Mr. Klukowski and Mr. HopkinsorMr. Kiukowski and you guys.

3 Mr. Brothers. No. That's correct. But you are doing one thing. You're going

4 beyond asking him about his impressionof Mr. Coleman's role. He answered that

Ss question.

s Now you are inserting legal analysis by asking Mr. Kiukowski f that impression to

7 him would satisfy the legal requirements of attorney-client privilege. Thatis where I'm

8 drawing the line.

9 I~he cic assert that in his privilege log, that he was speaking with

10 Mr. Coleman - Mr. Hopkins, whois described as another attorney, slash, professional.

11 Solm trying to understand that

2 Mr. Brothers, ~The log is - again, we're getting back into this. We're not going

13 togetinto conver we're not going to get into testimony under oath between you and

14 Mr. Kiukowski about the privilege log, the analysis that went behind the privilege log,

15 when decisions were made about the privilege log.

16 I rot asking for that information. I'm asking for Mr. Klukowski's

17 understanding of Mr. Hopkins’ role on the campaign.

18 Mr. Greim. Okay. | think that's fair. | think that question's fair. Sorry to

19 jumpin

2 The Witness. Sure. ~The conversations I'm referring to where | was under the

21 impression that he was acting as a volunteer, those were conversations about the

22 ongoing aspects of ongoing litigation.

23 I cov, vou could have a conversation with anybody about

24 litigation, right? Doesn't have to be somebody who's part of the campaign necessarily

25 Would you agree with that?
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: The Witness, Would agree that is possible fo one person to have a
2 conversation with another person about litigation that is not part ofa campaign? Yes, |

3 thinkthat's a correct statement,
. JI | covitto be careful here. | mean, we want to respect your
5 assertions, but it is helpful to understand Mr. Hopkins and who he is and his role as a

6 professionaloranattorney, 3s well a is ole on the campaign. Sothatis something
7 that | will follow up with Mr. Brothers and Mr. Greim about afterwards.

8 If we could go to exhibit No. 26, please. And this is one, Mr. Greim, that you

9 should have from the -- what we gave you today.

10 Mr.Greim. Yep. Thankyou,sir.

n oI
12 Q  Thisis an email, again, produced in ongoing litigation over — that involved

13 claims of various privileges and work product from somebody named Samuel Dewey to

14 you and Mr. Eastman. The subjects simply forward, and th attachment s
15 Bognet.docx.

16 Sowho is Mr. Dewey?

v A Mr. Dewey is an attorney who was doing volunteer work with the campaign.
18 Q  Atthis point on November 17th, | understand your period of dedicated

19 volunteerto the campaignwasover. Is thatcorect?
» A Fm notsureexactly which date. 1 wason twodiferenttypesof eave
2 First | took dedicated leave to work on the campaign, both before and after election day.

22 Then coming back from the campaignJI,nc wa: pot onJ sve.
23 So | was again on leave from the White House.

u 10 not recall 1 donot recal he date on wich ry [JI] ese end ana
25 was back on duty, though even after that point, | continued to volunteer when | was
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1 outside what referred to in my previous testimony as Hatch Act territory.

2 a okay.

3 A Suchas on private property, outside business hours, unless | took a lunch

4 break et cetera

5 Q don't want to get in -- based on your assertions, this is a document that's

6 onyourlog as being withheld as legal strategy. | don't want to get into that legal

7 strategy, but Bognet, can you just tell me what Bognet is? ~ And if you can do so without

8 revealing legal strategy.

9 A Yes. Bognetwasa Federal lawsuit that raised Elections Clause issues. It

10 was being actively tigated at that time.

u Q Understood.

2 A Ibelieve out of the State of Pennsylvania.

13 a okay.

14 A So the jurisdiction that | had worked in primarilyas a - as a volunteer

15 attomey.

16 Q Were you involved in that litigationascounsel of record?

7 A Bognet?

18 a Yes

19 A Not tomy recollection.

0 Q Were you involved in any litigation as counsel of record in Pennsylvania?

2 A Counsel of record? Not to my recollection. Not that recall

2 Q Ifwe goto exhibit 27 we are moving through theseratherefficiently, so

23 hopefullywe won't behereall too long.

2 But exhibit 27 is an email from Mr. Eastman to you on November the th. The

25 subjectis motion to intervene, and the attachment is, quote, Texas v. Pennsylvania, et al,
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1 dash, Trump motion to intervene.pdl.

2 If you go 0 28, that is the attachment to the emai in exhibit 27. And it looks lke.

3 amotion of Donald J. Trump, Presidentof the United States, to intervene in his personal

4 capacity in the Texas v. Pennsylvania lawsuit with counsel of record John C. Eastman.

5 Did you discuss Texas v. Pennsylvania with Professor Eastman around this time,

6 December the oth, 20207

7 A Ido not recall conversations with Dr. Eastman on that case.

8 Q This lawsuit raises a number of issues, but did you have any role in Texasv.

9 Pennsylvaniaeither with Dr. Eastmanoranyofthe other plaintiffs, including the State of

10 Texas?

1 A Notthat recall

2 Q Had you discussed with Professor Eastman the idea of filing suit to four State

13 legislators to select electors before the election in November?

1a A Did! havea conversation with Dr. Eastman prior to November 3rd?

15 Q Correct.

16 A Not that! recall

7 Q Did you have a conversation with anybody about filing suit to four State

18 legislators to select electors before the election, so before you were a volunteerfor the

19 campaign?

1) A Notthat! recall

2 Q Ifwe goto page 17 of this lawsuit or at least the attachment - in the

2 prayer for relief

2 A I'm sorry, could you repeat where | am?

2 Q Ofcourse. Page 17. And the page numbers are at the top of this

25 document.
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1 A Yes Yes. Thankyou.

2 a sure.

3 A Imthere. Yes, I'm there

4 Q Allright. So in the prayer for relief, 8, it says, Declare that any electoral

5 college votes cast by such electors appointed in the defendant States - Pennsylvania,

6 George, Michigan, and Wisconsin are in violation of the Electors Clause and cannot be

7 counted.

8 So my question is, had you discussed the idea of filing suit to, quote, declare that

9 any electoral college votes, end quote, in States that Trump might lose, before the

10 election? Did you have that discussion before the election?

1 A Not that! recall

2 Q This relief, particularly in D, which is at the bottom of page 17,If any of the

13 defendant States have already appointed electors to the electoral college using the 2020

14 election results, direct that such States’ legislatures, pursuant to statute in the

15 Constitution, have the authority to appoint a new set of electors in a manner that does

16 not violate the Electors Clause or to appoint no electors at all.

7 That is somewhat similar to the letter that you drafted for Mr. Clark on December

18 the 28th and that we covered in your last deposition. Did you discuss the December

19 28thletter that you drafted with John Eastman?

0 A Not that recall, nor would Isay that the two are similar.

2 You're referring there, if|am correct in understanding, that you're referring to a

22 letterfor leff Clark that was after December 14th?

23 Q Correct, yeah. So in our last meeting, we discussed the December 28th

24 letter that you drafted for Mr. Jeffrey Clark while at the Department of Justice as a proof

25 of concept letter to the State of Georgia, asking them to look nto election-related issues.
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1 A Yeah. Rather than call that similar, | would characterize that as

2 fundamentally different.

3 Q Okay. And, obviously, this document and that document will speak for

4 itself. I'm not here to necessarily argue with you on the merits of that, Mr. Klukowski.

5 Did you speak to anybody that you knew to be affiliated with the Trump campaign

6 or Trump campaign legal team about the December 28th letter that you drafted for

7 Mr.Clrk?

8 A Not that recall

9 Q Doyou knowifMr. Clarkdid?

10 A Notthat!recall. Not that know of. Not that can recall knowing of.

u Q Do you knowwhether Mr. Clark ever discussed filing Texas v. Pennsylvania

12 orthe relief in Texas v. Pennsylvania with Dr. Eastman?

13 A I have no recollection of any reference being told to me about that.

1 Q We understand that Mr. Eastman and Mr. Clark may have had at least one

15 conversation or communication in very early January, perhaps as early as January 1st or

16 the2nd. Do you remember Mr. Clark ever telling you about communications that he

17 had with Dr. Eastman?

18 A I donot recall being told of any such communication.

19 Q If we can goto exhibit No. 29, please. And just for timeline purposes, the

20 email we just looked at where Mr. Eastman sent you Texas v. Pennsylvania motion to

21 intervene, that was at 8:33 Mountain Standard Time, and exhibit No. 29 looks to be

22 December the 9th, same day, at 8:37 UTC minus 7.

23 A Yeah. Sobothin the evening.

2 Q The subject ofthis email in exhibit No. 29 is legislatorT - excuse

25 me legislators TPs with an attachment, Congress TPs Trump electors. That attachment
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1 isatexhibit No. 30.

2 A Yes, Iseelt,

3 Q Why did you send this to Dr. Eastman?

4 A Idonot recall ~ | don't recall why it was sent. 1do I dosee it

5 Q  Doyou remember sending it to Dr. Eastman?

6 A Idonot recall sending it to him. I see I see the email record. |do not

7 recall sending that email, but |do see the record of it here.

8 Q Do you remember talking to Dr. Eastmanaroundthis time when - around

9 the time he sends you a motion to intervene in Texas v. Pennsylvania and around the

10 same time that you then sent to him these legislators TPs with the attachment in 30?

u A I hada number of conversations with a number of individuals. |do not,

12 sitting here in, what is this, June of 2022, I don't recall which - which dates certain

13 conversations or points may have been madeor discussed -or topics discussed.

1 Q  Fairenough. Do you ever remember talking to Dr. Eastman about this

15 document that you sent, or the ideas conveyed in this document, legislators TPs?

16 A Ido not recall specific conversations, though | do see the substance of the

17 document in front of me.

18 Q Okay. Solet's look at the substance of it. Why did you draft this

19 document --ordidyoudraft thisdocument?

20 A 1 recall writing something similar to this.

2 a why?

2 Mr. Greim. And I'm going to jump in here. This -- the problem is this: This is

23 a document over which we would be asserting privilege. Obviously, it's been produced

24 byEastman. And so we're prepared to talk about the substance of the document, in

25 other words, you know, what has been waived, which is what's in the document, but
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1 think we are not prepared to go beyond in terms of, you know, why it was produced, who

2 requested it, what his own thoughts and beliefs are, and other conversations that are like

3 the document
4 And so while we recognize that you have it now, it is privileged, and | think the

$ questions need to be limited to the document and what's in it.

s J Vel were going to explore someof those privileges just a
7 minute, Mr, Greim, and point taken

e oI
9 Q So you said you remember draftingadocument like this?

0 Aves
u Q Does this look like the document that you drafted?
2 Aves
13 Q Inthe summary points, this talks about Article Il of the Constitution, making

14 legislatures the final authority on Presidential electors, State law makers appoint electors,
15 Congress accepts them.

16 In the second paragraph, below the summary points is a very short paragraph. It

17 says, Republican legislatures should do ikewise and summon Trump electors to vote on
18 December 14th. On January 6th, Republicans in Congress should fight to count those:

19 electorcentiates
2 What is it that you're saying here, if you could just boil it down to --

2 A Sure. The "likewise" refers to the previous paragraph, the one we skipped

2 over there. And it was to saythat the relationship of -- of sections reflected in Federal

23 law, in that this accepts, as a premise, that this is a document built on the premise that 3

24 U.S.C. Section 1says that States can choose -- State legislatures can choose to participate

25 ina national lection day the same day that Members of Congress are chosen; in tha that
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1 isthe general that is the general and typical framework through which the legislature

2 appointselectorsfor the electoral college in a Presidential election; in that the following

3 section of Federal law, 3 U.S.C. Section 2 is Congress' recognizing the reality, not

4 conveying the power, because it's not theirs, but to recognize that Article Il empowers

5 Statelegislatures that f the election process - if a State chooses to participate ina

6 national election day, andifthe frameworkfor that day fails on election day to produce a

7 result, then legislatures can, if they don't want to be opted out, to miss theirchance to

8 participate in the electoral college, that then they can appoint electors in a manner that

9 they see fit; in that this is what was reflected in various opinions in Bush v. Gore, which

10 was decided at this time, making reference to the historicalfactthat the Republican

11 legislature was debatinga form of legislation, | believe but not sure, that it was a joint

12 resolution or a concurrent resolution, where the legislature was would've passed a joint

13 measure saying that the election had failed in Florida in November of 2000, and that it

14 was the legislature's determination that George W. Bush of Texas had was the lawful

15 winnerof the States, | believe it was 25 electoral college votes, while that legislation or

16 resolution whateverthe proper term would be for it - while that measure was being

17 debated, that's when the Supreme Court handed down Bush v. Gore. And so the

18 legislative action then became -- became moot. It was never brought then for a final

19 vote.

0 And so in the following paragraph, the one that you referenced, it says that

21 Republican legislatures, so a legislature acting in official session on a majority vote basis, a

22 majoritarian basis, could, in advance of December 14, because Article If specifies that

23 Congress picks the day when electors are appointed, and that under 3 U.S.C. 7, that date

24 would've been December 14 in 2020, that legislatures could pass the same kind of joint

25 measure, summoning Trump electors to actually be appointed on December 14, if if the
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1 legislature determined that because of the irregularities and violations of State election

2 lawn the numbers reflected in the subsequent paragraphs, that in each of those States it

3 was, infact,a failed election, and, therefore, that the legislature would have the option of

4 shifting from the 3 U.S.C. Section 1 framework, to the 3 U.S.C. Section 2 framework, so

5 long as they acted by the day specified in 3 U.S.C. Section 7, which, again, is December

6 14th

7 Q Okay. Doyou recall working on this document or a document lke this

8 before well let merephrase that.

9 When, to the best of your recollection, did you begin working on this document?

10 A I'm thinking through whether that is - I'm thinking, processing through

11 whether that is envelope information.

2 Mr. Greim. Asaml. Asam!

13 You know, I think it’s fair -- | think the problem is this. ~ That question is trying to

14 understand the campaign's legal strategy. | think i’ fair — | think it's fai to ask when

15 this document was prepared. | think asking about how long it took to prepare it, when

16 didit start, how many drafts did it go through, I think that is not appropriate because

17 we're trying to get at the campaign's legal strategy.

18 I so this document obviously was produced to us in litigation. You

19 can tell that from - well, Il justrepresent that to you.

1) Vl also say that this was not included onyour attorney-client privilege log. It was

21 included on your First Amendment log. So there has been no assertion, at least as far as

22 withholding this document from the committee, on the basis of any kind of

23 attomey-client or work product privilege, and that makes sense particularly to the

24 committee in lightof the fact that we received it through separate litigation where it did

25 not protect the document as well.
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1 Mr.Graim, Wellbut we ae assertingattomey-cien privilege. I mean,
2 obviously, it's been produced because -- | don't know this, but |thinkajudge in California

3 foundthat there's a rime fraud exception. I'mnot sure if that'swhere this was
4 produced, but -
5 Eosot
s Mr. Greim. Okay. Okay. Well nonetheless, | mean, this isa — tisis a
7 document produced by the campaign, and | -- we can tell you that, and we assert the

8 attorney-client privilege.

° ovI
10 Q Do you agree with what Mr. Greim just said?

u A 1 dont know any aspect ofthat tht disagree with.
12 Q Okay. Some of the theory in here, and what you just explained in this

13 document, is similar to the letter that you drafted for Mr. Clark on December the 28th.

10 Doyouagree with that?
1 A No
16 Q Inwhat ways are they different?

A December Lath. Congresssts thedaybywhichelectors are tobe
18 appointed. December 28 is after December 14th.

19 Q And both of those, both letter and the document we just looked at, talk

20 about State leglatures having the authority to choose ther own electors. Do you agree
a with that?
2 A My recollection of the December28 letter was the authority of legislatures

23 to convene, not whether on December 28 they had power to appoint electors after

2 December 14
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1

2 [12sam)

3 oI
4 Q Iwill say this. The letter is at exhibit No. 2 in yourbinderwe went over at

5 length. On page 3, it does say that "we," meaning the Departmentof Justice, "share

6 with you," in this letter, meaning the State of Georgia, "our viewthatthe Georgia General

7 Assembly has implied authority under the Constitution of the United States to call itself

8 into special sessionfor the limited purpose of considering issues pertaining to the

9 appointmentof Presidential electors."

10 A Which paragraph?

u Q That's page 3, the bottom paragraph.

2 A Yes. That paragraph does not say they still had the authority to appoint

13 newelectors. It's saying they have the authority to convene to discuss the appointment

14 ofelectors. That would include electors that werealready appointed and could not be

15 changed.

16 Q Okay. Ifwe goto pages, this letter that you drafted says, middle

17 paragraph, "The Georgia General Assembly accordingly must have inherent authority

18 granted by the Us. Constitution to come into session to appoint electors regardless of

19 any purported limit imposed by the State constitutionor State statute requiring the

20 Governor's approval.”

2 Do you agree that | just read that correctly?

2 A Yes. And that's consistent with what said, because I'm referring to there's

23 no mention there to the Federal Constitution or the Federal Constitution empowering

24 Congress to seta date beyond which electors cannot be appointed. That's only a

25 reference to State statutes and State constitutions.
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1 Q Do you see on the second line it says U.S. Constitution?

2 A No. Authority granted by the US. Constitution to come into session to

3 appoint electors and that that is not limited -- that appointment process is not limited by.

4 State statutes or by State constitutions, yes.

5 Q so this document, as well as the document we were looking at before, does

6 talkaboutState legislatures’ authority to choose their own electors, correct, under the,

7 US. Constitution?

8 A Itrefers to their authority through the date specified by Congress, which in

9 2020 was December 14

10 a Okay.

u A toappoint electors.

2 a okay.

13 A either through the national election process, if they're under 3 USC 1, or if

14 that becomesa failed election under 3 USC 2.

15 If there is a failed election, then through December 14, through the date set by 3

16 USC7, they have authority to directly appoint rather than forego participation in the

17 electoral college for that cycle.

18 Q When we met the first time, you discussed the process by which you were

19 selectedtojointhe Departmentof Justice.

20 Did conversations about State legislatures and their powers to choose electors

21 come up at any point during your process of being selected to join the Department of

2 Justice?

23 A Not that recall

2 Q  Itcould have, though, or you just don't recall it?

2 A Ido not normally in deposition| ike to stay with “not that I recall.” will
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1 categorically say | have no recollection, no inkling that there was any sort of conversation

2 prior to the time that | was on leave and an attorney with the campaign.

3 Q Okay. And appreciate that. And, of course, in deposition you are under

4 oath. Soif there is something that you do recall, you would have to tell us

5 A Absolutely. So it's my standard formulation is "not that | recall” but I'm

6 trying to be as emphatic as | can in terms of - the first conversation | recall about my.

7 going tothe Justice Department was July of 2020, the first conversation | had in terms of

8 formally pursuing it.

9 The first conversation | had with DOJ personnel being interviewed to come over to

10 the Department, that was in September. |believe the date of the interview was - and

11 that process started while Mr. Hunt, Joseph Hunt, who goes by Jody Hunt,was the

12 assistant attorney general in charge of the Civil Division.

13 I believebythe time | was interviewed, it was September 10th, | believe it was

14 Camellia Delaplane, if I'm recalling her name correctly, and no conversation of this nature:

15 cameupatany pointin thatprocess.

16 Q Okay. Solike said before, you withheld this document on the basis of the

17 First Amendment. Its not on the attorney-client log to the bestas I can tell. And in

18 your comments you said that this is an email regarding electors clause in democracy,

19 parentheses, (no discussion of Vice President or Congress’ role).

0 A Which communication are we speaking about now? Which document?

2 Q Thankyou for clarifying. It's the document attached at exhibit No. 30.

2 A Okay. Sowe'reon30now.

23 Yes. Okay. Goahead.

2 Q And this, of course, does talk about Congress, and it says, "On January 6th,
25 Republicans in Congress should fight to count those elector certificates."



36

1 A Right. Elector certificates that were appointed on December 14 that the

2 legislature appointed through joint legislative action on December 14.

3 Q 50 you do agree this document involves the discussion of Congress role on
4 January 6th? And I'll just refer back to the second paragraph there, right in the middle,

$ it says, "On January 6th, Republicans in Congress should fight to count those elector

6 centifcates”
7 Mr. Greim. | mean, counsel, the document says what it says, and you can ask the

8 witness to agree that it says those words. But you've heard the context in which this

9 was drafted. This is not about alternate electors. This is not about the issues that

10 arose later on where people began to talk about the role of Congress.

u I ict row I'm just focused on the representation tothe sefect
12 committee that this document doesn't include discussion of Congress’ role. And|just

13 want to make sure that we're on the same page, because it does,in fact, mention, "On

14 January 6th, Republicans in Congress should igh to count those efector certificates," and
15 these, of course, are relevant issues to the select committee.

16 Mr. Greim. Well, I'm trying to understand what is the point about what the

7 document represents or what t doesn't. | mean, it says what t says, Why does that
18 have a special -- | guess I'm missing the relevance of it.

® ID vest. mean, if i. Kiukowsk'schiectiontothe select committee
20 getting this is a First Amendment assertion with the justification that it doesn't include a

2a discussion of the Vice President or Congress’ role, issues that are core to the select

22 committee's investigation, we just want to make sure that he understands tht tis
23 document does, in fact, include that and that we would askfor a carefullookof other

24 documentsbeingwithheld on tha justification.
25 Mr. Klukowski. Congress’ role in what? |just want to make sure |
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1 I i: i yourassertionofthe First Amendmentprivilege. It says,
2 "Nodiscussion of Congress’ role.” And it does, in fact, include the sentence, "On

3 January 6th, Republicans in Congress should fight to count those elector certificates."

a Mr. Klukowski. ~ And that would have been responsive to what? When the

5 committee put the role of Congress on the table, what was that referring to, alternate

6 electors?

7 [I | can, if you'reaskingabout the relevance, that's for the

8 committee to determine. I'm just trying to understand the basis for your withholding.

° Mr.Greim. Yeah,lljust jump in here.

10 1 mean, | understand - thankyou,[Jl vnderstand the fast point you

11 made. However, this is not - the question of Congress' role came intoplay when it

12 tumed out that legislatures did not call anyone back, did not call electors in, and there:

13 were noaltemateelectors that were chosen in that manner.

1 And so this is prospective, this is before December 14th had come and gone, and

15 thisis abouta role that Republicans in Congress could have had, but ultimately did not.

16 mean, so | don't think this is | understand it has the words Republicans in

17 Congress on January 6th, | understand that, but i's not relating to the situation that

18 actually occurred, that was actually presented, and that the committee's actually

19 investigating. So think we have a disagreement on that.

2 I or what yousaid. The committees investigation obviously s
21 notentirely public. And sol will say that the committee's determination of relevance is

22 different than what your understanding seems to be, Mr. Greim. So I'm just tring to

23 make sure that|understand the basis for withholding in the First Amendment context,

24 particularly this document that's now been produced to the committee.

2 But that's something I'm happy to take upwith you and Mr. Brothers afterwards
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1 as wellto understand these assertions.

2 Mr. Greim. Okay. |mean, | can't say it any better than | just did. But in our

3 view, ths is not | mean, ths is describing a scenario that never took place.

a And so | just don't -- | don't understand how that's within the purview of what

5 the -- the committee's investigating what did take place. I'm sorry. I'm wasting time.

6 Goonahead

7 IE No. Thatsokay. do want to get on the record your objection

8 to talking about this, though. Is it a relevance objection that you're making?

9 Mr. Greim. No. | mean, I'm addressing -- | mean, look, we've said that he can

10 talk about what's in the memo. You'vegot it, we've said he can talk about it.

1 My objection is moving beyond the memo, and the objection is attorney-client

12 privilege and First Amendment objection.

13 And so everything we were just talking about was one prong of your attempt to

14 show relevance to get around the First Amendment privilege.

15 Icot

16 Mr. Greim. But you can go fully into what's talked about in this memo.

v J rot vin toshow relevance. At this pint, we've talked sbout
18 this memo. I'm trying to understand the withholdings from the select committee of

19 relevant documents,particularly where the explanation is that there's no mention of
20 Congress.

21 But that is something I'd be happy to address with you after this as well.

23 Q Did you ever show this document to Jeffrey Clark?

2 A Notthat! recall
2 Q Did youeverdiscuss the contents of this document o the theories in this
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1 document with Jeffrey Clark?

2 A Notthatl recall. My conversations with Mr. Clark that | can recall are all

3 after December 14, after that memo would have become moot.

4 Q Andyour conversations about this included your discussion about the letter

5 you drafted on December 28th for Mr. Clark, the Georgia letter.

6 A If understandyour question correctly, yes, | do not recall any mention of

7 this memo pertaining to what could happen on December 14. 1 recall no mention of

8 thatinany discussion that we had on December 28th.

9 Q Oneof the thingsthatMr. Greim just mentionedis thisidea aboutalternate

10 electors meeting and casting votes in States that President Trump had lost.

1 Were you aware of that effort to have alternate electors, the Republican electors,

12 meetand cast votes in any State that Trump had lost?

13 A Electors that had not been appointed by the legislature?

14 Q Correct.

15 A No, Ido not recall any conversationup to that time on that.

16 Q  Uptowhat time?

7 A Itis,as| referenced in my -- the frst part of this deposition, on the previous

18 date, did become aware at some point ater in December that, in fact, on December 14,

19 which was then in the past, that individuals had gotten together and executed papers

20 that they claimed were electoral college certificates, but | became aware of that at some

21 dateinthe future.

2 1 had no knowledge, | don't recall any conversation or recall having any awareness

23 ofthat either before December 14 or on December 14. It was some point after

24 December 14.

2 Q Do you remember ever discussing those alternate electors after
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1 December 14th with John Eastman?

2 A Notthatl recall. do not recall discussing those.

3 Q Do you remember discussing those alternate electors after December 14th

4 with Jeff Clark?

5 A Givemeamoment. I'm thinking through conversations here.

6 Q Of course. Take your time.

7 A Ido believe at some point in the day on December 28 | did discuss with him

8 what had happened in Hawail in 1960 that we discussed in the first part of my

9 conversation. So it would have been relevant -it would have been relevant to that

10 conversation point at that time, that Hawaii and| understand DOJ has waived all

11 privilege regarding -- | can just answer.

2 Acknowledged the historical fact about it and that, i | recall correctly, and I'm

13 trying tobe as forthcoming as | can,if recall correctly, that | had found no case law

14 support to support the effectiveness of what had been done in 1960.

15 Soit had happened as a historical fact and that Vice President Nixon had not

16 objected toit, but that there was - but that | did not identify any legal authority saying
17 that those pieces of paper would have any constitutional empowerment.

18 Q Whatwas Jeff Clark'sreaction to that?

19 A don't recallif he reacted atall.

0 Q  Doyouremember

2 A Nor do recall precisely how| phrased it, if it's - if it's ~ you know, it's we

22 justspenta few seconds on Hawaii. | don't recall what my word choicewas and | don't

23 recall anything about the substance of his reaction or whether he reacted at all

2 Q Did Jeff Clark ever mention anything to you about using let me start over.

2 Did Jeff Clark ever mention anything to you about the fact that these alternate
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1 slates of electors might be used on January the 6th even if a legislatureor a court hadn't

2 ratified or adopted them?

3 A Notthatlrecall. Can you repeatit again, because | want to make sure I'm

4 listening to every aspect of what you're saying? I'm saying not that | recall, but ask it

5 again.

6 Q Okay. And Ilitry todo my best to repeat it.

7 But do you recall any conversations with JeffClark about usingor anybody using.

8 thesealternate slatesof electors on January 6th even if they had not been ratified by a

9 Statelegislatureor adoptedby a court?

10 A Ido notrecall such an exchange.

u Q How about any use of the alternate slate of electors on January 6th? Do

12 you have any conversations with Jeff Clark about that?

13 A Not that recall

1 Q Did you discuss after December 15th, when you started at the Department

15 of Justice, alternate electors with anybody from the President's campaign or personal

16 legalteam?

1” A Discussed the idea that alternate electors could be inserted into the mix and

18 impact? Notthatl recall.

19 Q Just relevant at all that somehowthese alternate slatesofelectors --

20 A Would be relevant to the outcome of the 2020 election?

2 Q Correct.

2 A Not that recall

23 Q So you don't remember having conversations with anybody from the.

24 President's personal legal team or campaign legal team about alternate electors after?

2 A Not that recall
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1 Q Okay. Illgo to exhibitNo.31. Thisis a December 28th email, again,

2 produced to us in litigation over ~ that included claims of various privileges and work

3 product assertions.

a This is from a person named Edward Corrigan and Connie Har, copying both you

Sand Mr. Eastman, from Ken Blackwell. This subject is, "VP briefing on January 6th, 2021,

6 meeting."

7 First, Il ask you, who is €d Corrigan?

5 A Ed Corriganis, to the best of my knowledge, a private citizen who works here.

9 in Washington, D.C.

10 Q Do you have any kind of friendlyor professional relationship with Mr.

1m Corrigan?

2 A Iwould say that weare friends.

3 Q Did you work on issues related to the November 2020 election together?

1a A Ido not recall working with Mr. Corrigan on the election.

15 Q And Connie Hair, we went over last time, is Mr. Gohmert's chief of staff, at

16 leastatthe time. Isthat correct? That's what you understood?

FY A Yes. Correct. Thatwas andismyunderstanding.

18 Q John Eastman, we've beentalking about him.

19 And who's Mr. Blackwell?

1) A Mr. Blackwell is a friend of mine and a former elected official and former

21 presidentially appointed official, previous administrations.

2 Q In this email Mr. Blackwell says, "As| stated last week, | believe the Vice

23 President and his staff would benefit greatly from a briefing by John and Ken."

2 Did you have a conversation in the week before this email with anyof these

25 participants about briefing the Vice President?
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1 A Ido not recall having a conversation with any of these individuals about

2 briefing the Vice President.

3 Q  Doyou remember Mr. Blackwell saying anything about the Vice President's

4 role on January the 6th at any point after December 15th?

5 A Ido not recall conversations with Ambassador Blackwell on that topic.

6 Q And conversations, to be clear, would include any communications,

7 meetings, text messages, phone calls. You don't remember any of those things with Mr.

8 Blackwell about the Vice President?

° A 1Isee this email right here and | do not recall any communications other than

10 thisemail. |don'trecall being consulted beforehand about this. | do not recall any

11 subsequent action that took place.

2 1 will say emphatically, even though I'm saying not that Irecall, I do not recall ever

13 briefing the Vice President or members of his - or, like, his legal counsel or chief of staff

14 or, youknow | do not recall any such briefing or meeting taking place.

5 Q Do you remember ever hearing after December 15th about the idea that

16 somebody should brief the Vice President about what could happen on Januarythe 6th?

1” A So many people were saying so many things in the media and in news.

18 reports and in rooms with bunches of people where | might be at some point. do not

19 recall that point being made at any given point.

20 Q Okay. So this email, in the first sentence it says, "As stated last week,|

21 believe the Vice President and his staff would benefit greatly from a briefingby John and

2 Ken"

23 You don't remember anything about conversations --

2 A Yeah.

2 Q  -- about briefing the Vice President with you and John Eastman?
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1 A In whatever communication is being referenced inthatfirst clause where it

2 says, "As stated last week," | have no recollectionofanything happening. | mean, thisis

3 December 28. Sol have no recollection of anything in whatever that window would be,

4 December whatever towhatever. What that's referencing there, | have no recollection

5 about what that would be.

s Q Did you ever speak to John Eastman about him potentiallybriefing the Vice

7 President or after briefing the Vice President what he discussed?

5 A 1donot Ill answer those as separate questions. | do not recall anything
9 pertaining to the former, nor do recall him ever telling me that he briefed the Vice

10 President

n Q Mr. Blackwell sad in the next line, "As | also mentioned, make sure we don't

12 overexpose Ken given his new position.” At that point, you had onlya week or two

13 before joining the Department of Justice.

1a Do you know what Ken Blackwell's concerns were with you and your new

15 position?

16 A Idonotknow. Itis--Idonotknow. |don'tknow what he is referring

17 there. | had made known in my friend circles, which would include Ambassador

18 Blackwell, that | was looking forward to joining the Department and that once | was there

19 I would be ina fundamentally different role. | saw myself as a straight G-man and just

20 seeking to get some respectable DOJ litigation credentials under my belt before | went on

21 tothe private market in January 20 looking for a job.

2 Sol had told everyone that | thought | was moving on from campaign-related

23 activity, because | was going to keep my head down and focus on my government job.

2 1 don't recall specific conversations, but |said them to so many people so many

25 times that | would be confident that the ambassador was in at least one of those.
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1 conversations.

2 Q Do youknow why Mr. Blackwell would suggest that you and John Eastman

3 brief the Vice President?

a A Idonot. Idonot know. Ambassador Blackwell has frequently

Ss recommendedme for, ike, my Federal judicial clerkship. He was one of my

6 recommenders for that. So he is ~ he has frequently recommended me for things.

7 He and | did publish a law review article more than a decade prior, Yale Law and

8 Policy Review, about voting rights. And he and | had worked on election law issues

9 through the years. And we had done so both as legal academic scholars and in active

10 litigation.

1 Sol believe he regards me - he has described me to other people as an election

12 law expert and as a constitutional law expert. So that that is - that is the background.

13 But don't know with regards to this specific assertion. So I'm obviously trying to be as

14 forthcoming as| can.

15 Q Do you know why he would recommend you to talk about the Vice

16 President? And the context of ths to me suggests it's about the joint session.

17 Obviously, it doesn't state that. But what aboutyour qualifications makes you the

18 person to brief a Vice President?

19 A Ido not know and I do not recall sharing my views with him regarding what

20 the Vice President could do on January 6th. | do not know exactly 1 did not know at

21 thetime what Dr. Eastman'sviews were of it the views that were later that later came

22 tolight in that memo that we discussed in myearlierdeposition.

2 If he was aware of both ofourviews -- and, again, | don't recall havinga

24 conversation with him on it~ but if he was aware ofboth of ourviews, then he would

25 have known that we had very different views regarding January 6th. So! don't know if
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1 he would have wanted the Vice President to hear different perspectives.

2 Q And when you say very different views, what do you mean?

4 express support for what Dr. Eastman said in his memo and that|had explained the

$ positions | had pressed or that | was supportive of with the Departmentof Justice in

7 in that vein.

8 So I've recounted the historical facts of my activities related to those things that

9 I've been cleared to do.

10 To go from that to discussing what my personal views are on the underlying legal

12 Q You just said that perhaps the Vice President might benefit from having

13 different views between you and John Eastman, and so | guess I'm trying to understand --

15 ‘mentioned my name.

16 Q Right.

18 to be as forthcoming as possible in terms of teeing up. But it's -- for that matter |

19 shouldn't even —- | shouldn't speculate regarding -- | guess it's -- I'mtryingto be helpful,

20 butit's, | guess, if I'm a fact witness, | just won't - | won't speculate.

2a Q Okay.

23 committee's here for facts and not speculation. So you've said it yourself. I'll pass
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1 Q Did Ms. Hair | guess let mestart over.

2 Did you ever talk to Ms. Hair about sensitivities about your situation with the

3 Department of Justice and being able to do things like briefing the Vice President?

4 A Well those are two separate questions. ~ Let's break those ou.

5 1 have no recollection of anything pertaining to the Vice President. | referenced

6 inmy earlier conversation that | wasn't sure what | spoke with her about on the phone

7 record that we saw on December 28. And told you that while | couldn't recall the exact

8 conversation, that | would be - that to the best of my recollection the substance was that

9 nowthat | know thereis litigation here with the United Statesasan adverse party, that |

10 should not be communicating about this.

1 And so | don't recallifthat was a, "You can't be callingme on this. | can't be

12 answering your questions. Don'temail me things. Make sure I'm not copied on things.

13 can't have any part of this." | don't know what was conveyed in that phone call.

14 But | do know that was the factof the matter, is that I'm now seeing that| had

15 just was seeing something indicating to me that | was in an adverse position and so|

16 just shouldn't be having communications on this.

7 1 do notrecallwhat | conveyed or how | conveyed it.

18 Q 50 this email is on the same date as the email you received from Ms. Hair

19 A Yes.

0 Q about Gohmert v. Pence?

2 A Yes.

2 Q Was there any connection between what's being suggested in this email and

23 Ms. Hair sending the Gohmert v. Pence lawsuit to you?

2 A Notthat!know of. Not to my knowledge.

2 Q Were you surprised by this? | mean, somebody's suggesting to you that
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1 you're going to brief the Vice President and it sounds like you wanted nothing to do with

2 that. Doyou remember being surprised or pushing back?

3 AI recall being surprised when | saw the email. | don't recall whether |

4 responded atall or if it was | just need to be totally, you know, | need to be a hole in the

5 wateron this.

5 I can't remember that | responded at all. | could wellhave just been, "I'm not

7 even goingto reply to say stop. It's just nothing. And if someone calls me, tell them

8 we can't have this phone conversation, get off the phone."

5 So1 donot recall respondingon this.

10 Q  Yousaid you were surprised, though. What specificallydo you recall being

11 surprised about?

2 A Im surprised, given that | would be at the Department of Justice, that t's

13 just that's just not the kind of thing that | saw as consistent with the role | was having

14 for our limited remaining weeks in the administration, that | was just being a straight

15 Geman lawyer, and that for me things pertaining to the 2020 electionwere just for me.

16 that they were done, that it was that | have a job description now and | had a full plate,
17 and that there was not a role to be in ongoing efforts regarding the aftermath of the 2020

18 election, that that wasn't what | was doing - with the glaring item there of Mr. Clark

19 having tasked me with helping in the drafting of a etter to write out points on that

20 subject matter that he dictated be written. But that that wasnothing that | volunteered

21 fororthat | was voluntarily engaging in.

2 Q so-

23 wr. Greim. [JI 1 sorry to jump in here, but we've been going - 1

24 know we've had somediscussionswith counsel, but we have been going now for quite a

25 while straight. Canwe take just a short break to let the witness walk around and drink
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1 some water, go to the bathroom, or are you, like, almost done?

2 I Vee cetting to be done here and | do want tofinish just a line of

3 questioning. I'mhappywith a quick break in a few minutes, though.

a Mr. Greim. Okay.

s o I
6 Q Ido want to drawyour attention, in front of you is a transcript of your prior

7 testimony,

8 And, Mr. Greim, for your benefit, | believe you still have access toi, but Il also

9 read the portion that I want to ask Mr. Klukowski about.

10 If you turn to page 118, starting on line 23. This is a conversationthat we were:

11 having about Ms. Hair. And you said, starting on line 23, "When we do see each other

12 i's, Hi howit's going?’ And i's genuine. But we're not, ike, in regular

13 communicationorworkon things."

1a So my questionfor yous, this is now the second email from the 28th about the

15 election or seemingly about the election, at least on its face — that you received from

16 Ms Hair. Andtoa layperson it could suggest that you were, in fact, working on things

17 together. So-

1 A Onemoment. Letme-

19 Q Yeah

1) A Stand by one moment. Il let you know when I've reviewed this. Il let

21 youknowas soon as I'm done. It looks like we went on at great length on this.

2 Okay. 1 think - we went on for quite some length, and | think I've got the

23 exchange in terms of the prior part of the deposition.

2 Goahead,sir

2 Q Okay. Soifwelook at page 118ofyour prior deposition transcript, lines
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1 23, talking about Ms. Hair, you said, "When we do see each other it's, ‘Hi, how's it going.”

2 Andit's genuine. But we are not, lie, in regular communication or work together on

3 things"

4 A Yes.

5 Q So my question for you in light of that is that on December 28th we know of

6 atleast these two emails that included Ms. Hair about the election in particular. = So

7 were you working on issues related to the election with Ms. Hair?

8 A Not that recall

9 Q Do these emails, seeing them, this, and the fact that you got the Gohmert v.

10 Pence lawsuit from her the same day and you discussed at lengthyour communications

11 with her on the 28th, refresh your recollection as to what you were doing with Mrs. Hair

12 around that time?

13 A No. Ido not believe | was doing - to the best of my recollection, | had not

14 seen Mrs. Hair during any of my time at DOJ. I'm not sure how long it had been even

15 priortothat since | had seen her.

16 Q And you said you weren't in regular communication. Sowere bothofthese.

17 kind of news to you, out of the blue, all ofa sudden Ms. Hair pops up twice in one day?

18 A Tothe best of my recollection, yes.

19 Now, obviously, that's not -- those are not two isolated things. Someone.

20 mentioned my name to her. So, | mean, it's there's content from the communication

21 wejust looked at indicating that there were other conversations going on, conversations.

22 that! have no recollection being a part of.

23 Q When you spoke to Ms. Hair on the 28th, did she raise this idea about

24 somebody briefing the Vice President, potentially you?

2 A Not that recall
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1 Q Were you ever, infact, asked to brief the Vice President?

2 A Not that! recall

3 Q Do youthink that's something you'd remember,ifyou had to brief the Vice

4 President about something?

5 A I'm trying not to speculate, butIthink itd be hard for me to forget being
6 asked to brief someone of that high of rank.

7 Q Did you help prepare any materials or informationthatwere used to brief

8 the Vice President or intended for use to brief the Vice President?

9 A Notthat! recall

10 Q You mentioned earlier that Mr. Eastman may have had a differing view on it

11 than you and, of course, hesentyou on January the 3rd a short two-page memo that we

12 discussed inthe prior deposition.

13 00you recall receivingthatfrom Mr. Eastman?

1a A Irecall whatwe previously discussed a numberof months ago about that,

15 that's reflected in the deposition here.

16 Q Okay. Fairenough. And were you at the time - so this is now

17 December 2020, January 2021 aware of Mr. Eastman's views onwhatthe Vice

18 President could or couldn't do at the joint session?

19 A Ido not recall being aware of those views prior to seeing that memo. |

20 recall being surprised by ~ yeah.

2 Q And you have no recollection or understandingofwhy Mr. Blackwell would

22 want suggest that you brief the Vice President with John Eastman, who eventually did

23 brief the Vice President and said that he had the authority to not count certain electoral

24 votes or even delay the session?

2 A No. Ido not know and it would be speculation. All| know is the historical
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1 pattern of how frequently he has recommended me — recommended me for the

2 administration, recommended me for my clerkship, recommended me for an adjunct

3 faculty position - there's a long list over the years of things that the ambassador has

4 recommendedme for.

5 Q And when you say "he" and "the ambassador,” you're referring to Mr.

6 Blackwell?

7 A Ambassador Blackwell, correct.

8 Q 50 do you recall having any conversations with John Eastman about the joint

9 session of Congress after December 15th, 20207

10 A I donotrecall any such conversation.

u Q Do you remember discussing the joint session of Congress with any of these

12 people - Edward Corrigan, Connie Hair, Ken Blackwell - after December 15th, 20207

13 A Ido notrecall such conversations.

1 Q  Sothey could have happened, you just don't recall them?

15 A Someone like Mrs. Hair | don't see often. People like Ambassador

16 Blackwell and Mr. Corrigan, we're at the same Christmas parties, we're at the same

17 cocktail hours. | mean, we're together an awful lot of places. And at events of that

18 nature, upcoming big events are frequent topics of conversation.

19 1 do not recall being part of any such conversation during that window.

20 Q Do yourememberever discussing with Ms. Hair Representative Gohmert

21 objecting at the joint session?

2 A Idonotrecall such a conversation.

23 Q Do you remember talking to Ms. Hair about any objections during the joint

24 session?

2 A Ido notrecall such a conversation.
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1 Q Did you know in this period, around December 2020 and January 2021, that

2 John Eastman was, in fact, going to brief the President or the Vice President about the

3 joint session?

4 A 1donot recall being told that regarding either POTUS or VPOTUS.

5 Q How about any White House staff, includingthe President'sstaffor the Vice

6 President’ staff?

7 A 1donotrecallbeing told about such a briefing.

8 Q And my question specifically would be whether you were told about the

9 briefing or an intended briefing beforehand or after the fact of it occurring?

10 A Yeah, Ido not recall any such conversation.

1 Q Originally, this document you withheld as being about an email regarding

12 scheduling and logistics of a private meeting. Would you characterize a meeting with

13 the Vice President to brief him asa private meeting?

14 A Well, it would not be a public meeting. So by principle of noninclusion, |

15 thinkthat - | think someone could characterize thedefault alternative as a private

16 meeting.

7 Q Butameeting with the Vice President, a meeting with a government official

18 about the joint session of Congress, a public event, that's still in your mind a private

19 meeting?

0 A Itisnotapublic meeting.

2 Q Are youfriendlywith the Vice President?

2 A Ihave met the Vice President at points in the past. ~ We do not have what |

23 would call any sort of interpersonal relationship.

2 1 don't even know if he would know my name if he were to see me. He might

25 recognize afamiliarface. | would not count on him to even remembermy name.
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1 I |co just want to ask a couple more people.

2 If you want to take a quick, | think we maybe have 15 or 20 minutes eft. So we

3 canpower through ortake a quick break. It's entirely up to you.

a Mr. Greim. Well, why don't we take a very quick break?

5 I sue Absolutely. And just as a reminder before we go that this

6 camera willstay on.

7 wr. Brothers. Can[flltake us back to that empty room?

8 I t'sfine with me. And maybe we'll reconvene then in

9 7 minutes, 12:30, or 10 minutes, 12:33?

10 Mr. Brothers. Let's just do ten. 1like round numbers.

u Icooff the record
2 (Recess)

13 I cts co back on the record. It's 12:34, and we're resuming the

14 deposition of Mr. Ken Kiukowski.

15 ovI

16 Q Justa few follow-ups.

FY Are you familiar with a person named Ken Chezbro (ph) or Cheesebro (ph),

18 depending on how you pronounce it?

19 A Howisit spelled?

20 Q Chesebro.

2 A I have no recollection ofever seeing or hearing that name.

2 Q Okay. Doyou know an individual named Mark Martin?

2 A MarkMartin?

2 Q Correct. Former North Carolina Supreme Court judge.

2s A Ihave no recollection ofa person by that name.
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1 Q How about James Troupis, T-r-o-u-p-i-s?

2 A I donot recall ever meetinga person by that name.

3 Q Okay. Notnecessarily meeting, but talkedwith them, communicated with

4 them?

5 A No. Iam unawareof any communication | had with someoneofthat name,

6 bythatname.

7 Q And just I'l represent toyou that Mr. Chesebro is somebodywhoalso was a

8 lawyer doing work withthe campaign in the post-election period. | believe he was

9 based outof, atleast for part of the time, Boston, Massachusetts.

10 Does that refresh your recollection?

u A No. It-no

2 Q Okay. Do you know who Ginni Thomas is?

13 A Yes.

1 Q Who do you know her to be?

15 A Gini Thomasis a prominent figure in the conservative movement and the

16 wifeof Justice Clarence Thomas.

uv Q Did you have any communications withher after the election,

18 November 3rd, 2020, up and through January 20th, 20217

19 A Ido notrecall any substantive communication. We end upat a lotof the

20 same Christmas parties and whatnot. So | do not recall any conversations with her, but |

21 could easily have seenher during that time and exchanged pleasantries at some sort of

22 social event like a Christmas party. | have no recollection.

23 Q  Fairenough. And we're not so interested in those pleasantries.

2 A Right. Absolutely. |justwant to make clear I'm being veryforthright with

25 youinmy answer.
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1 Q Yes. appreciate that. So just for clarity in the record, do you recall ever

2 having any conversations about the 2020 election with Ms. Thomas after the election?

3 A I donotrecall such a conversation.

4 Q Do yourememberanyconversationsyou had with Ms. Thomas about the

5 joint session of Congress?

6 A Ido not recall any such conversation.

7 Q Earlier, before we broke, | asked you about any briefings that you're aware

8 of forthe Vice President or the President. And just to be clear, did you ever discuss or

9 communicate with any White House staff about the joint session of Congress?

10 A Not that recall
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1

2 (1237pm])

3 ovIN
a Q How about the Vice President's staff? ~ Same question.

5 A Notthat! recall

6 Q And given your role, do you think you'd remember if you were to brief the

7 White House staff or Vice President's staff about the Joint Session of Congress after the

8 election?

° A Ifit were a meeting in something like the Oval Office, I think | would recall

10 something like that. It's - i's - I'm not going to speculate regarding my recollection,

11 but certainly fit was something — if it was the kind of momentyou'd think you'd have a

12 photographer present for to capture, that would be something | would expect to

13 remember.

1 Q Is there anything that you've said today that you'd like to go back and

15 change or amend before we break?

16 A Not that think of athis time.

7 I Ov there anythingelsethat you, Mr. Brothers,oryou,

18 Mr. Greim, would ike to put on the record before we break?

19 Mr. Brothers. Nothing from me.

20 Mr. Greim. No.

2 Ioc) Then at this time, we are going to leave the deposition

22 open, subject to the call of the chair, in order to work through some of the objections that

23 we've discussed today, and mainly those that were asserted on the privilege logs for First

24 Amendment and attomey.-client privilege reasons. But otherthan that, | think we're

25 done, and we can go off the record.
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1 (Whereupon, at 12:39 p.m., the deposition was adjourned, subject to the call of

2 thechair)
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